
EXECUTIVE SERVICES 

TONBRIDGE & MALLING
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Chief Executive
Julie Beilby BSc (Hons) MBA

Gibson Building
Gibson Drive
Kings Hill, West Malling
Kent ME19 4LZ
West Malling (01732) 844522

NB - This agenda contains proposals, 
recommendations and options. These do 
not represent Council policy or decisions 
until they have received proper 
consideration through the full decision 
making process.

Contact: Committee Services
committee.services@tmbc.gov.uk

6 January 2017

To: MEMBERS OF THE JOINT STANDARDS COMMITTEE
(Copies to all Members of the Council)

Dear Sir/Madam

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the Joint Standards Committee to be held in 
the Civic Suite, Gibson Building, Kings Hill on Monday, 16th January, 2017 commencing 
at 7.30 pm

Yours faithfully

JULIE BEILBY

Chief Executive

A G E N D A

PART 1 - PUBLIC

1. Apologies for absence 5 - 6

2. Declarations of Interest 7 - 8

Public Document Pack



3. Minutes 9 - 10

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Standards 
Committee held on 15 June 2016 

Matters submitted for Information

4. Update - Code of Conduct Complaints 11 - 16

5. Code of Conduct - Refresher Training 17 - 18

6. Urgent Items 19 - 20

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special 
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive. 

Matters for consideration in Private

7. Exclusion of Press and Public 21 - 22

The Chairman to move that the press and public be excluded from the remainder 
of the meeting during consideration of any items the publication of which would 
disclose exempt information. 

8. Urgent Items 23 - 24



MEMBERSHIP

Cllr Miss J L Sergison (Chairman)
Cllr D J Cure (Vice-Chairman) and Cllr D A S Davis (Vice-Chairman)

Cllr Mrs P A Bates
Cllr Mrs S Bell
Cllr R P Betts
Cllr Mrs B A Brown
Cllr Mrs T Dean

Ms D Alford-Smith
Mr D Beach
Mr J A Beadle
Mr M Carboni
Mr P Crawford
Mrs P Darby
Mrs T Dawson
Mr D Elvy
Ms P Garrett

Independent Persons

Mr D S Ashton

Cllr T Edmondston-Low
Cllr D Lettington
Cllr P J Montague
Cllr C P Smith

Mr D Gaunt
Prof M McKinlay
Ms J Newman
Mr T Petty
Mr J P S Regan
Mr R Selkirk
Mr W E Stead
Mr D Thornewell
Mr R Ulph

Mr J M Gledhill



This page is intentionally left blank



Apologies for absence

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Declarations of interest

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



1

TONBRIDGE AND MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL

JOINT STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 15th June, 2016

Present: Cllr Miss J L Sergison (Chairman), Cllr D A S Davis (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Mrs P A Bates, Cllr R P Betts, Cllr Mrs B A Brown, 
Cllr Mrs T Dean, Cllr P J Montague, Cllr C P Smith, Mr J M Gledhill 
(Independent Person), Ms D Alford-Smith (Snodland), Mr M Carboni 
(Plaxtol), Mr P Crawford (East Peckham), Mrs P Darby (Platt), 
Mrs T Dawson (Borough Green), Mr D Elvy (Aylesford), Mr R Selkirk 
(West Malling) and Mr W E Stead (Burham)

Councillors Mrs J A Anderson, O C Baldock, M A Coffin and 
S C Perry were also present pursuant to Council Procedure Rule No 
15.21.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors D J Cure 
(Vice-Chairman), Ms J A Atkinson, Mrs S Bell, T Edmondston-Low, 
D Lettington, Mr D S Ashton (Independent Person), Mr D Beach 
(Wrotham), Mr J A Beadle (Ditton), Ms P Garrett (Addington), 
Mr D Gaunt (Trottiscliffe), Mr A Petty (Kings Hill) and Mr D Thornewell 
(East Malling and Larkfield)

PART 1 - PUBLIC

ST 16/1   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest made in accordance with the 
Code of Conduct.

ST 16/2   MINUTES 

RESOLVED:  That the Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Standards 
Committee held on 1 July 2015 be approved as a correct record and 
signed by the Chairman.

MATTERS SUBMITTED FOR INFORMATION

ST 16/3   UPDATE - CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS 

The report of the Monitoring Officer provided an update on complaints 
received since September 2014.

RESOLVED:  That the report be received and noted.

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



JOINT STANDARDS COMMITTEE 15 June 2016

2

ST 16/4   CASE LAW UPDATE 

The report of the Monitoring Officer provided an update on recent cases 
and other guidance relevant to the work of the Joint Standards 
Committee.

RESOLVED:  That the report be received and noted.

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION IN PRIVATE

ST 16/5   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

There were no items considered in private.

The meeting ended at 8.05 pm

Page 10



Joint Standards – Part 1 Public  16 January 2017 

TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL

JOINT STANDARDS COMMITTEE

16 January 2017

Report of the Monitoring Officer

Part 1- Public

Matters for Information

1 UPDATE – CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS

1.1 Introduction 

1.1.1 This report updates Members on the complaints made to me as Monitoring Officer 
that a Member may have failed to comply with his/ her authority’s Code of 
Conduct. 

1.1.2 In accordance with the arrangements adopted by the Borough Council for dealing 
with complaints that a councillor has breached their authority’s code of conduct, 
complaints are subject to an initial assessment by me in consultation with the 
Independent Persons and the Chairman and Vice-Chairmen of the Joint 
Standards Committee. In advance of that assessment I invite the Councillor 
against whom the complaint is made to submit their initial views to me so that 
these may be taken into account in our deliberations.

1.1.3 Our adopted procedure requires that complaints are assessed against the 
following preliminary criteria – 

The legal jurisdiction test - this contains 6 elements, including

- was the person complained of acting in an official capacity at the time of the 
alleged conduct? 

- If the facts could be established as a matter of evidence, could the alleged 
conduct be capable of a breach of the Code of Conduct? ;

If a complaint fails one or more of the jurisdiction tests, no further action will be 
taken and the complaint will be rejected; 

The local assessment criteria test - if a complaint passes the legal jurisdiction 
test, I am then required to apply the local assessment criteria test. There are 12 
elements to this test, including 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



2

Joint Standards – Part 1 Public 16 January 2017 

-The complaint is relatively minor and dealing with the complaint would have a 
disproportionate effect on both public money and officers’ and Members’ time;

-The complaint is such that it is unlikely that an investigation will be able to come 
to a firm conclusion on the matter, e.g. where there is no firm evidence on the 
matter

If one or more of the local assessment criteria applies to the complaint, no further 
action will be taken by me and the complaint will be rejected.

A full copy of the adopted arrangements is included at Annex 1.

1.1.4 If a complaint passes the above tests, the next stage is then to consider whether 
the complaint merits investigation, or if it is more appropriate for it to be resolved 
on an informal basis. In certain cases it may also be appropriate to take no action, 
notwithstanding the fact that a complaint has passed the initial tests.

1.1.5 As agreed by this Committee on 19 January 2015, personal details of 
Complainants or Subject Members are not published unless a complaint leads to 
investigation and public hearing before the Hearing Panel. 

1.2 Complaint 08/2015 – Leybourne Parish Council

1.2.1 On 24 November 2015, I received a complaint about the conduct of a Member of 
Leybourne Parish Council.

1.2.2 The complaint alleged that the Member in question had abused his position as a 
Parish Councillor during the period March/ April 2015 to November 2015.

1.2.3 The complaint passed the legal jurisdictional test in that I considered the conduct 
was capable of amounting to a breach of the Leybourne Parish Council Code of 
Conduct. If proven, it could have amounted to a failure to meet the following 
obligations. 

 
“Member obligations

(1) He/ she shall behave in such a way that a reasonable person would regard 
as respectful

(2) He/ she shall not act in a way which a reasonable person would regard as 
bullying or intimidatory :

1.2.4 However, I considered that the complaint failed the local assessment criteria, for 
the following reasons

(a) The issues were inherently related to the particular relationship that existed 
between the individual and the Parish Council;

(b) The scenario that emerged from the paperwork was one of a dispute where 
both parties were aggrieved with the conduct of the other, with a number of 

Page 12



3

Joint Standards – Part 1 Public 16 January 2017 

allegations and counter-allegations. This could reasonably be characterised as 
‘tit for tat’ within paragraph (d) of the local assessment criteria.

1.2.5 No further action was therefore taken in respect of the complaint. 

1.3      Complaint 01/2016 – Leybourne Parish Council

1.3.1 On 11 January 2016 I received a complaint about the conduct of a Member of 
Leybourne Parish Council.

1.3.2 The complaint alleged that the Councillor had breached the Leybourne Parish 
Council Code of Conduct by disclosing confidential information relating to an 
employee of the Council.

1.2.3 I considered that the conduct alleged in the complaint was capable of amounting 
to a breach of the Leybourne Code of Conduct in that if proven, it could amount to 
a failure to meet the obligation not to disclose information which is confidential or 
where disclosure is prohibited by law.

1.2.3 However, the complaint failed the local assessment criteria, for the following 
reasons

.
(a) The issues were inherently related to the particular relationship that existed 

between the individual and the Parish Council.

(b) There would be little benefit from an investigation or other action.

1.2.5 No further action was therefore taken in respect of the complaint.

1.3 Complaint 06/2015 – Wateringbury Parish Council

1.3.1 On 11 June 2015 I received a complaint about the conduct of a Member of 
Wateringbury Parish Council.

1.3.2 The complaint alleged that a Member of the Parish Council had failed to leave the 
room during an item of business in which he had declared an interest.

1.3.3 I considered that the complaint met the requirements of the Legal Jurisdictional 
test, in respect of that part of the complaint relating to the failure to notify the 
Monitoring Officer of an interest in a particular property. However, in relation to the 
local assessment criteria test, I considered that there was nothing further that 
could be gained from an investigation under the Code of Conduct.

1.3.6 In all the circumstances of the case I was of the view that the Subject Member 
may well have misunderstood the requirement to disclose their interest in the 
particular property. In such circumstances the most appropriate and cost effective 
way to resolve the complaint would be to resolve informally through the provision 
of training on the Code of Conduct.  

Page 13



4

Joint Standards – Part 1 Public 16 January 2017 

1.3.7 I can confirm that this training has been provided.

1.4 Complaint 03/2016 – Wateringbury Parish Council

1.4.1 On 3 June 2016 I received a complaint about a Member of Wateringbury Parish 
Council.

1.4.2 The complaint alleged that the Councillor had breached the Wateringbury Parish 
Council Code of Conduct by disclosing confidential information.

1.4.3 I considered that the complaint failed the Legal Jurisdictional test, in that the 
conduct alleged was not capable of amounting to a breach of the Wateringbury 
Code of Conduct.

1.4.4 The decision I therefore reached was that no further action should be taken in 
respect of this complaint.

1.5 Complaint 04/2016 – Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council

1.5.1 On 27 July 2016 I received a complaint about a member of Tonbridge and Malling 
Borough Council .

1.5.2 The complaint alleged that the Councillor had breached the Tonbridge and Malling 
Code of Conduct by refusing to discuss the details of a planning application with 
the complainant, and by having a “closed mind” on the matter.

1.5.3 I considered that the complaint failed the Legal Jurisdiction test, in that the 
evidence suggested that the matters complained of were not substantiated and 
the conduct of the Councillor was unlikely to amount to a breach of the Code. 

1.5.4 Furthermore, the complainant appeared to be unreasonably persistent and 
vexatious and consequently the complaint would also fail the local assessment 
criteria.

1.5.5 The decision I therefore reached was that no further action should be taken in 
respect of this complaint.

1.6 Complaint 05/ 2016 – Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council

1.6.1 On 27 July 2016 I received a complaint about a member of Tonbridge and Malling 
Borough Council.

1.6.2 The complaint alleged that the Councillor had breached the Tonbridge and Malling 
Code of Conduct by having been rude to the complainant and had discriminated 
against the complainant due to his political views. This was in the context of an 
exchange of emails.

1.6.3 I reviewed the exchange of emails and noted that the content and language used 
by both the complainant and Councillor was robust and forthright. I considered 

Page 14



5

Joint Standards – Part 1 Public 16 January 2017 

that the Councillor’s tone, whilst possibly disrespectful, was unlikely to amount to 
a breach of the code.

1.6.4 Additionally, there was no evidence which suggested that the Councillor would not 
take into account the views of the complainant, and as such there was no 
evidence of discrimination.

1.6.5 I therefore considered that the complaint failed the Legal Jurisdiction test, in that 
the evidence suggested the conduct in question was not capable of amounting to 
a breach of the code. Furthermore, the complainant appeared to be unreasonably 
persistent and vexatious and consequently the complaint would also fail the local 
assessment criteria.

1.6.6 The decision I therefore reached was that no further action should be taken in 
respect of this complaint.

1.7 Legal Implications

1.7 The Borough Council is required under s28(6) of the Localism Act to have in place 
arrangements under which allegations can be investigated and decisions on 
allegations can be made.

1.8 Financial and Value for Money Implications

1.8.1 Nil arising from this report.

contact: Adrian Stanfield

Adrian Stanfield
Director of Central Services & Monitoring Officer

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Code of Conduct – Refresher Training

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special 
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive.

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



The Chairman to move that the press and public be excluded from the remainder 
of the meeting during consideration of any items the publication of which would 
disclose exempt information.

ANY REPORTS APPEARING AFTER THIS PAGE CONTAIN EXEMPT 
INFORMATION

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special 
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive.

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Apologies for absence
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	4 Update - Code of Conduct Complaints
	5 Code of Conduct - Refresher Training
	6 Urgent Items
	7 Exclusion of Press and Public
	8 Urgent Items

